

PCB HHSC 11-04

ORIGINAL

YEAR

1 A bill to be entitled  
 2 An act relating to the Office of Drug Control; repealing  
 3 s. 397.332, F.S., relating to the Office of Drug Control;  
 4 amending s. 14.2019, F.S., making conforming changes;  
 5 placing the Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention and  
 6 Grants and Donations Trust Fund within the Department of  
 7 Children and Family Services; amending s. 14.20195, F.S.,  
 8 making conforming changes; naming the director of the  
 9 Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention as chair and  
 10 nonvoting member of the Suicide Prevention Coordinating  
 11 Council; providing for the appointment of members of the  
 12 council by the director of the Statewide Office for  
 13 Suicide Prevention; amending s. 311.115, F.S., making  
 14 conforming changes; placing the Seaport Security Standards  
 15 Advisory Council within the Executive Office of the  
 16 Governor; providing for the appointment of the chair of  
 17 the Seaport Security Standards Advisory Council by the  
 18 Governor; amending s. 311.12, F.S., making conforming  
 19 changes; amending s. 311.123, F.S., making conforming  
 20 changes; amending s. 397.331, F.S., making conforming  
 21 changes; amending s. 397.333, F.S., making conforming  
 22 changes; placing the Statewide Drug Policy Advisory  
 23 Council within the Department of Health; naming the  
 24 Surgeon General or his or her designee as chairperson and  
 25 nonvoting member of advisory council; naming the director  
 26 of the Office of Planning and Budgeting or his or her  
 27 designee as ex officio member of the advisory council;  
 28 directing the Department of Health to provide staff

PCB HHSC 11-04

ORIGINAL

YEAR

29 support for the advisory council; repealing s. 893.055,  
 30 F.S., relating to the prescription drug monitoring  
 31 program; repealing s. 893.0551, F.S., relating to the  
 32 public records exemption for the prescription drug  
 33 monitoring program; amending s. 943.031, F.S., making  
 34 conforming changes; naming the Policy Coordinator of the  
 35 Public Safety Unit, or a designee, of the Governor's  
 36 Office of Planning and Budgeting as a member of the  
 37 Florida Violent Crime and Drug Control Council and the  
 38 Drug Control Strategy and Criminal Gang Committee within  
 39 the council; amending s. 943.042, F.S., making conforming  
 40 changes; providing an effective date.

41

42 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

43 Section 1. Subsections (1), (3), and (4) of section  
 44 14.2019, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

45 14.2019 Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention.—

46 (1) The Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention is created  
 47 ~~as a unit of the Office of Drug Control~~ within the Department of  
 48 Children and Family Services ~~Executive Office of the Governor.~~

49 ~~(3) Contingent upon a specific appropriation, the director~~  
 50 ~~of the Office of Drug Control shall employ a coordinator for the~~  
 51 ~~Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention who shall work under the~~  
 52 ~~direction of the director to achieve the goals and objectives~~  
 53 ~~set forth in this section.~~

54 (4) The Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention may seek  
 55 and accept grants or funds from any federal, state, or local  
 56 source to support the operation and defray the authorized

PCB HHSC 11-04

ORIGINAL

YEAR

57 expenses of the office and the Suicide Prevention Coordinating  
 58 Council. Revenues from grants shall be deposited in the Grants  
 59 and Donations Trust Fund within the Department of Children and  
 60 Family Services ~~Executive Office of the Governor~~. In accordance  
 61 with s. 216.181(11), the Executive Office of the Governor may  
 62 request changes to the approved operating budget to allow the  
 63 expenditure of any additional grant funds collected pursuant to  
 64 this subsection.

65 Section 2. Paragraphs (a), (d), and (e) of subsection (2)  
 66 of section 14.20195, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

67 14.20195 Suicide Prevention Coordinating Council;  
 68 creation; membership; duties.—There is created within the  
 69 Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention a Suicide Prevention  
 70 Coordinating Council. The council shall develop strategies for  
 71 preventing suicide.

72 (2) MEMBERSHIP.—The Suicide Prevention Coordinating  
 73 Council shall consist of 28 voting members.

74 (a) Thirteen members shall be appointed by the director of  
 75 the Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention ~~Office of Drug~~  
 76 ~~Control~~ and shall represent the following organizations:

- 77 1. The Florida Association of School Psychologists.
- 78 2. The Florida Sheriffs Association.
- 79 3. The Suicide Prevention Action Network USA.
- 80 4. The Florida Initiative of Suicide Prevention.
- 81 5. The Florida Suicide Prevention Coalition.
- 82 6. The American Foundation of Suicide Prevention.
- 83 7. The Florida School Board Association.
- 84 8. The National Council for Suicide Prevention.

PCB HHSC 11-04

ORIGINAL

YEAR

- 85 9. The state chapter of AARP.
- 86 10. The Florida Alcohol and Drug Abuse Association.
- 87 11. The Florida Council for Community Mental Health.
- 88 12. The Florida Counseling Association.
- 89 13. NAMI Florida.

90 (d) For the members appointed by the director of the  
 91 Statewide Office for Suicide Prevention ~~Office of Drug Control~~,  
 92 seven members shall be appointed to initial terms of 3 years,  
 93 and seven members shall be appointed to initial terms of 4  
 94 years. For the members appointed by the Governor, two members  
 95 shall be appointed to initial terms of 4 years, and two members  
 96 shall be appointed to initial terms of 3 years. Thereafter, such  
 97 members shall be appointed to terms of 4 years. Any vacancy on  
 98 the coordinating council shall be filled in the same manner as  
 99 the original appointment, and any member who is appointed to  
 100 fill a vacancy occurring because of death, resignation, or  
 101 ineligibility for membership shall serve only for the unexpired  
 102 term of the member's predecessor. A member is eligible for  
 103 reappointment.

104 (e) The director of the Statewide Office for Suicide  
 105 Prevention ~~Office of Drug Control~~ shall be a nonvoting member of  
 106 the coordinating council and shall act as chair.

107 Section 3. Section 311.115, Florida Statutes, is amended  
 108 to read:

109 311.115 Seaport Security Standards Advisory Council.—The  
 110 Seaport Security Standards Advisory Council is created within  
 111 under the Executive Office of the Governor ~~Office of Drug~~

PCB HHSC 11-04

ORIGINAL

YEAR

112 ~~Control~~. The council shall serve as an advisory council as  
 113 provided in s. 20.03(7).  
 114 (1) The members of the council shall be appointed by the  
 115 Governor and consist of the following:  
 116 (a) Two seaport directors.  
 117 (b) Two seaport security directors.  
 118 (c) One representative of seaport tenants.  
 119 (d) One representative of seaport workers.  
 120 (e) One member from the Department of Law Enforcement.  
 121 (f) One member from the Office of Motor Carrier Compliance  
 122 of the Department of Transportation.  
 123 (g) One member from the Office of the Attorney General.  
 124 (h) One member from the Department of Agriculture and  
 125 Consumer Services.  
 126 (i) One member from the Office of Tourism, Trade, and  
 127 Economic Development.  
 128 ~~(j) One member from the Office of Drug Control.~~  
 129 (j) ~~(k)~~ One member from the Fish and Wildlife Conservation  
 130 Commission.  
 131 (k) ~~(l)~~ The Director of the Division of Emergency  
 132 Management, or his or her designee.  
 133 (2) In addition to the members designated in subsection  
 134 (1), the council may invite a representative of the United  
 135 States Coast Guard to attend and participate in council meetings  
 136 as an ex officio, nonvoting member of the council.  
 137 (3) Members of the council shall be appointed to 4-year  
 138 terms. A vacancy shall be filled by the Governor for the balance  
 139 of the unexpired term.

PCB HHSC 11-04

ORIGINAL

YEAR

140           (4) The council chair shall be designated by the Governor  
 141 from among the appointed members of the council ~~shall be chaired~~  
 142 ~~by the member from the Office of Drug Control.~~

143           (5) At least every 4 years after January 15, 2007, the  
 144 Governor ~~Office of Drug Control~~ shall convene the council to  
 145 review the minimum security standards referenced in s. 311.12(1)  
 146 for applicability to and effectiveness in combating current  
 147 narcotics and terrorism threats to the state's seaports. All  
 148 sources of information allowed by law shall be used in assessing  
 149 the applicability and effectiveness of the standards.

150           (6) Council members shall serve without pay, but shall be  
 151 entitled to per diem and travel expenses for attendance at  
 152 officially called meetings as provided in s. 112.061.

153           (7) The council shall consult with the appropriate area  
 154 maritime security committees to assess possible impacts to  
 155 commerce and trade contained in the council's nonclassified  
 156 recommendations and findings.

157           (8) The recommendations and findings of the council shall  
 158 be transmitted to the Governor, the President of the Senate, and  
 159 the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

160           Section 4. Paragraph (a) of subsection (1), paragraph (b)  
 161 of subsection (3), paragraphs (a) and (b) of subsection (8),  
 162 subsection (10), and paragraph (d) of subsection (11) of section  
 163 311.12, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

164           311.12 Seaport security.—

165           (1) SECURITY STANDARDS.—

166           (a) The statewide minimum standards for seaport security  
 167 applicable to seaports listed in s. 311.09 shall be those based

























